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1. Name of Property

historic name St. Mary's Church

other names/site number

2. Location

street & number 337 Charlotte Street NA) not for publication
city or town Asheville NEJ vicinity

state _NOTrth Carolina  code NC  county Buncombe code _021 zip code 28801

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, | hereby certify that this K] nomination
O request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of
Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the proparty
T meets [J does not mest the Natjonal Register criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant
[ nationally (I statew ia7/( (D Ses continuation sheet for additional comments.)

.o

A}

SHPo -9
Signature ol certifying oﬂicialmde(/ Date ’

State of Federal agency and bursau

In my opinion, the proparty O meets [J does not meet the National Register critena. (D See continuation sheet for addilional
commaents.)

Signature of cenifying official/Tile Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4. National Park Service Certlfication
| hereby cerufy that the property is: Signature of the Keeper Date of Action
[ entered in the National Register.
[J see continuation sheet.
[J cetermined eligible lor the
Nalional Register
O ses continuation sheet.

[ getermined not eligible lor the
Nauonat Register.

D removed {rom the National
Register.

O other, (explain:)




St.__Mary's Chureh
Name of Property ~

Buncombe, N.C.
County and State

5. Classlileatlion

Category of Property

Ownershlp of Property
. (Check only ons box}

(Check as msany boxes as apply)

@ privato &) building(s)

O public-local O district

03 public-State O site

O public-Federal O structure
3 object

Name of related multlple property llsting
(Entar “NJA™ If property Is not part ol a multiple property listing.)

N/A

Number of Resources within Proparty
(Do nol Include previously listed resources In the count )

Contributing Noncontributing
2 1 buildings
1 ’ siles
structures
2 objects
3 5 Total

Number of contributing resources previously llsted
in the Natlonal Register

0

6. Funcilon or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter calegorine fram instructions)

Religion: Religious facility
__Religion: chyrch-Related Residence

Current Functlons
(Enter categories from Instructions)

Religion: Religious facjility |
Religion:

Chyrch-Related Residence

7. Description
Archltectural Classliication Materlals
(Enter categories from instructions) (Enler categories lrom instructions)
Late Gothic Revival foundation _Stone
walls Brick
100! Asphalt
Shingle
other

Narratlive Description

(Describs the historic and current condition of the proparty on one or more continuation sheels.)

GENERAL PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION:

Located at the intersection of
St. Mary's Church,
with the frent

has @ commanding view of the
Park is the centerpiece of
Register Diectrict (NR 19F1).

Charlotte Street and
- Asheville is sited on the west
gable-end facing west. The
1925, lies to the morth and also faces Charlotte Street.
Grove Park across the
the Grove

Macon Avenue.
side of a ravine
Rectory. constructed in
The church
streest. Grove
Park Neighborhood National
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8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
(Mark """ in one or more boxes for the critena qualilying the property
lor Nauonal Register lising )

(X A Property is associaled with events that have made
a significant contribution to the broad patlerns of
our history.

| 1 B Properly is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

X C Property embodies the distinctive characleristics
of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses
high artistic values, or represents a significant and

distinguishable enlily whose components lack
individual distinction.

| . D Properly has yielded, or is likely to yield,
information imponant in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations
(Mark “'x""1n all the boxes that apply )

Propenty is:

I% A owned by a religious institution or used for
religious purposes.

| 1 B removed from its original location.

| i C a birthplace or grave.

1 D a cemelery.

[J E a reconstructed building, object, or structure.
"I F a commemoralive property.

[J G less than 50 years of age or achieved significance
within the past 50 years.

Narrative Statement of Significance

(Explain the signilicance ol the properly on one or more conlinuation sheets )

"Areas of Significance

(Enter categones {rom instructions)
Architecture

- Religion ———

Social History

Period of Significance
1914 - 1944

Significaﬁt Dates
1914

21925

Significant Person
(Complete if Crterion B i1s marked above)

N/A

Cultural Affiliation
N/A

Architect/Builder
Smith, Richard S., Architect

Beadle, Chauncey,
Architect

9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibilography

(Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in prepanng this lorm on one or more continuation sheets )

Previous documentation on file (NPS):

(I preliminary determination of individual listing (36
CFR 67) has been requested

() previously listed in the National Register

(] previously determined eligible by the National
Register

(J designated a National Historic Landmark

{J recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey
#

J recorded by Historic American Engineering
Record # . _ ... ..

Primary location of additional data:

(B State Historic Preservation Office
(J Other State agency
(J Federal agency
" . Local government
(J University
(" Other
Name of repository:




St. Mary's Church
Name of Property

Buncombe, N.C.
County and State

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property 1.0 Acres

UTM References
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet.)

111,7) 316,010,600 [3.9]4,27,0,0]
Zone Easting Northing

2|l||ll'[llll||’|ll

Verbal Boundary Description
(Describe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.)

Boundary Justification
(Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet.)

c ) NI O I I RIS I NN O T

Zone Easting Northing

4[!'[|1’;||I|’||a;l

[J see continuation sheet

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitle _Kent R. Newell

date July 28 1994

organization _Consultant / Rass and Rayster

street & number __223 E. Chestnut St

telephone _(704) 252-6664

city or town _Asheville

state _N.C. zip code 28801

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:
Continuation Sheets

Maps

A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property’s location.

A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.

Photographs

Representative black and white photographs of the property.

Additional items
(Check with the SHPO cr FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner

(Complete this item at the request of SHPO or FPO.)

name

street & number

telephone

city or town

state zip code

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information i1s being ccllected lor applicatcns to the National Register of Histcne Places to norminate
properties for listing or cetermine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and 1o amend ex:sting listings. Response to this request is required to cttan
a benefit in accorcance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is esumated 1o average 18.1 hours per response inclucing time for reviewing
instructions, gathenng and mantaining data. and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden esiimate or any asfect
of this form to the Chief, Administrative Services Dwvision, National Park Service, P.O. Eox 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office cf
Management and Budget, Paperwork Reductions Projects (1024-0018), Washington, CC Z0503.
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A master landecape plen for the church groundes was outlined 'Iin 1919
- 191& by Chaurncey Beadle cof the Biltmore Estate and further defined
1N the mid-15&0" s by Doan Odgen.* Over %the vyears, the parichioners
have encagec the plan <csc there now exists a mature lendscape

R (g}

cormsicstant with the Beeacdle/0Odgen plan.

Open =paceszs lay te the south and north cof the church, as does the
strec- -nd store retaining wells to the east. A concrete pstio anc
wall surrcund the lower south side, rear and north side. The "hicgh
evercgreenr screen’” has fully matured and blocks Macon Avenue from the
rear.= Fitting 1intoc the natural lanmdscape, stone footpathse in
evidence in the Odgen plan still exicst.

Surrounding the church anc recteory are formal gardens conteining

seasonal {lowers, flowerinc <shrubse and native rhododendrons

dogwoods. The stone wall at the rear (east) of the church retains

manmicured shrubbery hedoe as proposed in the Odgen plan.

and

(=]

The rectory faces west and is located to the north of the church and

is at & slightly higher elevation. The wooded buffer behind the
residence drops to a lawn edged by a small creek which runs into &
culvert behind the church. The rectory is surrounded by tall pine
and hemlock trees and protected from Charlotte Street by a massive
Folly tree. Native rhodedendroncs and doawood cover the csice of the
ravire. Ctone stepe run scutheszt and lead down the ravine from the
hcuse tz the church.

Te the neorth of the rectory Evelyn Alley, from which

1
service drive leads to & shincle

c
-t

came time e¢c the rectory.

Sacrec 1cons and memcrials have been ecstabliched and, for
cart ars coneyetent wilth the clan. Moet noteweorthy Je
Weysics Sh-ire, oricinalls szt in place st the ccrmer of
Street anZ M"Mzzzn  Ssenuye 3y 1615 Thie si1te lies' directly
brRe chrcos

a cshort

“he m
the
Crarlc
s-uth

, one car garage constructed at the

NC
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1. ST, MRSy C CHURCH, ASHEVILLE. 19124, Contribut:ing buildirg

St. Mea-+'e Church, Rcheville, wee concstructed in 1914, The corigi

len cCeveloped by Richard Sharp Smith called for a rectory, cha

la-ge samctuary. On Qctober 21, 1914, the corner c=tcne

v tte fircet phace of constructicn, the decdication of the L
Ct. Mary e Farigh.”

This picturcscue one-story, red brick, gable-front building
cruclifecrm in plamn with a coursed, rough-cut eshler founceticon.
weestern ttarrd of the foundaticn i1e constructed at qgrade, the eact
tvio-thircs are fully expeoced. ~A1]1 door and window openings In
fourcdelion (erigine] ard 150 addition) exhib:rt the =
crafteranship and detail acs theese of the firet flcor.

The entry 1bule to the nave 1is located on the <couth elevet
and 1s & d through large oak double-doors mcunted 1in
pointed-er

panels, hs
door and

rought strap hinges that span the entire width of

ral
pel
wae

=gy

1<
The
2rn
the
ame

ion
a

lancet cpening. Each decor conteins si»x flet wood

the

large iron deoor latch. The double door is capped by a

a
csingle prointed-arch window divided into three parte by narrow

mullicone. The o©pening is trimmed with cut stone, harboring
rececsed &r
is buttrece

5

ch within the main arch. The entry vestibule gable-end
e with brick and cut stone shoulders between vertical

d
brich segments. The entry vestibule maintaline a parapet oqable
y cut

cepped by

cstone coping blocks and knee stones. The steeply

pitchez rocf intersects the main roof 1In  a typical cross-cable

facshion,

The west (mein) elevation is compriced of a three-part pointed-ar-ch
cr lance! ctainecd glasse window. The windew 1ic separted by cut stone
encd brict mullicome, Flanking the window or the north =icde 1ie¢ an

imege cf Jeoeeph holding the Christ Chilcd, on the south cide ie Mary.

by

Tre ctxtuery 1= located 1n brict rnichee surmcuntecd by scrol lec,
CernT-atlve ctons hcodes. A cteone tanccouree ceparatecs the arcted
wircowe frza & church bell enchored tc a oreojecting, co-bellec brick
ot cEmIce, Ae inm ali caces, the cancpy ic curmcunted

c s —aob =tiTre,

m
(B}
(N}

'

NC
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wincdows inte the nave on the north and south

alj cstaired-clace

clevatione are three-part, pointed-arch windows trimmed in
altesmrating cu.* stonewo:rt reflecting quolining.

CH tre neorth cide, challow buttrecssecs are lccated at the wes b

a2kle-cnz2 o~ flent the two gsete of pointed-erch windows.

Tcwa~d the rear of the nave on the south elevation 1s the sac-ic
It 1e azceceed on the ervterior by & concrete bridge cricinating nmea-

the entry vestibule. The precsent ircon railling replaced & ripe
rairl:mng  2cscemb iy evident in early photogrephs., A =imilar bridce
e-1ste on the nor th elevation and accecsses the churcth ' <
administrative cffjcec.

roof 1s presently three-tab aszphalt shingle and

The steec-pitched

reclaces an earlier concrete-asbestos shingle roof. Surmounted on
thhe roci above the tremcent is a large metel crozcz. Whijle rnot
c-i1ci1rz]l, ea~lv photeographs depict a cross of similar decigcn, cice
a~d material

the Church enlaraged the mave from seven rows of pev.z: teo

Im 1560,

thirteen by extending the east elevation approximately 22 feet and
pushing the sanctuary further east. Thie has altered the spac=zial
quality ef *te church. However, most of the hicstoric fabric of the
intericr remains intact. The ericstence of ghost lines suggests the
locations of original perimeter walls and rood screen. Simila- 1n

construction and material, the addition is well crafted and reflects

contemporary building materials and practices without detracting

from the original desian.

The interior of the church reflects the same simple, unadorned
features on the exterior. The windows are trimmed in brick, the
with simple boxed pilasters on the north and south

walle are exposed
walls separating the nave 1into three bays. The ceiling is

temgue-and-grocove beaded boards, stained and finishecd. The east
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gable-end arnd ceiling of the addition are plastered.

All exlcsting fabric ics in
and interior furnishings
represerntative cf a small
England with the ‘“correct"”
Angleo-Catholicism.

Urnilike the <cimple architectural
highly adorned interior elements
church for catholic worship
best liturgical research of the= davy.
and deveotionel exercises is &

Anglo-Catheolic ritual. "Ritueal 15

very cood condition.

Juxtapose
gothic-revival church of
ecclesiastical

fabric,
and 1
according tc

significant
the

The church’'s design
architectural style
rural Northern

of Edwardian

the

style

the splendor and
appropriately cutfit the
the prescription of the
Farticipation 1n ceremonial
aspect of the
of sacramental

however,
cons

vestment

faith; it 1 an offerirg to the majesty of the Most High."=2

Adjacent to and first wvisibls from the entry vestibule is the
octagenally-shaped baptismal font. To the right of the door ic a
emall fomt with holy water to remind the worshippers of their own
baptlism. Behind the Font is & carved oalk triptych made by local
crafttemen Rike Peevey.

The font ¢ in a direct line with the altar (if the font 1is the
symbol cof the beginning of our Christian journey, the altar is the
symbol of the goal of that journey). Along the walls of the nave,

are plaques
celled the

depicting fourteenr scenes
€Stations of the Cross

and were placed in

from the Passion of Christ,
the Church in

1516.
The cholr left, located at the westside of the nave above the
baptismal font, was completed in 1947. Mounted on the solid-panel

balustrade of the loft
symbols of the the four evangelists

itself stands the organ built by Walker of

Dividing the mnave from the sanctuary
of the chancel steps.
Calvary: Christ 1in agony on the

When the rear of the church was
platform moved, the original rood
present position. Vertical
the thiroc pilaster along with sections
molding indicate the original

are four diamond-shaped
or CGecepel writers.

is
Atop the roocd screen are the three figures of
Cross.,
expanced

screen
staining ocn

pcesition of

frames surrounding
In the loft
Suffolk, England.
the rooc screen at the foot
His holy Mother, and John.
in 1560 and the altar
was relocated to 1its
the brick walls adjacent to
cut out of an enlarged crown
the screen.
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The original pews are barely discernable from the replicas only
because of their patina. Original seating was composed of cathedral
chairse as seen 1n the historic photographs.

The original rood screen conisted soley of stained pine poste and
team, ac ceen 1in the historic photographs. The elatorately carved
verticle wood panmels on the rcod screen were rescued from the
burrira Hocwiznd House 1irn 1928.

Wher the acdition allowed for the alter and pletform to be
re:ocetec, the original door intc the cacristy had to be lowered to
the flcur level of the sanctuary. An irfill panel of plywood wes
n the arched head &bove the door. OCriginally, the detail
ac¢ of thie cdoor would have been similar to the vestibule

inserted 3
on the ne

s and pulpit in the choir were made at the wocdwri
School in Arden, North Carcline, 1in 1914 for St.

In the Gnglo-Catholic tradition, the sanctuary is ctill accrned with

gold =rc silver, embroidered hengirmgs and fine carpets. The altar

wee deszigned by Richard Sharp Smith and is of solid oak. Decorative
elemente include a square marble 1nset suppcrted by five columns of
oak. The columns are alternating with blue panels with a carved
eymbcl cf Chricst’'s bpacssion. The gold lettering across the retable
cstatese TAdoremus in  Aelernum Sanctissimus Sacramentum” (Let us

forever acore the most holy Sacrament).

Cr elther zide c©f the canctuary are "Credence" shelves fcr heoldinc
vesczels and bocts useZ in the mass. Surrounding each shelf are
beautifully hand-carved cal casnopies by Rite Peevey. ‘

Above the altar hangs a large painting entitled "Venite Adoremus"
and painted 1in 1959 by local artist, Leonard Craigqg. The painting
depicts Mciher Mary heclding the Christ Child with out-stretched
arms. Mary arnd Christ Child are surrounded by angels.

Statuary of the Elessed Virgin Mary 1is located on the north wall of
nave before the roocd screen. Elcsewhere in the church are statues of
€t. Joseph, Et. Francice cf Aessici, and c?¥ the Sacrec Heart cf Jesus.
The-e 1g an iccn of Christ the Savicr on the back north wall.,

I+ was alseo curing the 19&0 expansion that the three-clcbe light
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firtures of the origral chapel were removed and new ones added. The
lights were designd by Leonard Craig.

2. THE RECTORY. 192%. Contributing building

In 1925, the English cottage-cstyle rectory, also cesigned by Richard

Sharp Smith, was concstructed. It 1=z a typical English
Cottece-revival style, much in keeping with Smith's earlier works in
Eiltmore Villeage. A loan application in 1928, clearly <ctatec the

the rectcry ccocset 313,000,

Like the church <structur-e, the rectcry 1s lcceted on the west cide
of the ravine. Seer from the rear of the church, the rectory lcomrs
larce over the rear of the lot.

Recymeirical in form and gplan, the rectcry is a one ancd one-haif
story brict amnd stucco resicdential structure with an engeged front
entrance porch supported by wood brackets. The projecting entrance
i lcceted or the south elevation with the doo- facing Charlotte
Strect. A eice entrance on the nmorth elevation 1s alsc covered by
an enmngaged porch facimg Evelyn Alley.

A steeply pitched clipped-gable roof form runs on an east-west ax1is
with “he primery geble-end facing wecst toward Cherlotte Street. Two
eymmetrically placed clipped-gable cormercs with extended, cpen eaves
pierce the <=southerr roof slope. Orn the north =side, a large shec
dormer rune from the west elevation terminating in a valley
connecied to t-e gable roof over the northside entrance. The rocf
is sheathed imn three-tab asphalt shingle.

The first {flocr exterior is compecsed of brick with the gable encs
and dormers of stucce. Earlier photographs show the existance of
half-timbering in the gables.

All windows are presently single or peired steel casement wincows.
replacing earlier wcoden casements about 1960. The Charlotte Street
elevation contains a double steel casement wincow on each floor.
The appearance of this elevation is marred by a steel fire escape.
Originelly the northwest corner of the house featured an open pcrch,
this was also enclosed about 159£0. The cables on the eacst elevationr
also cocntainse a cdouble steel casement window.

On the east and scuth elevaticns of the house, the tasement 1S
visible above grade. A concrete porch with original iron railing
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extende from the bacsement door on the scuth side.

Twz chimney staects exist, both maintein simple brichk corbellinzg.
The chimney tc the rear 1Is larger and supports three tiled chimney
octe.

O~ the interior of the rectory, the cricinal cdecore, c2or &and window
ceurrounlte and living rocm mant2]l remain., Doors contain twe verticsl
nenels. The stalrway, which rieses from the nmarrcocw hell to which the

e door- copens, has & moided hancdreil and squeare newel. The
=z door containe two panels topped with a p2ir of emall-paned
windcowe. Eetween the penele 1 & wverticzal bress letter droc.
Floore throughout the house are ocebt strips mitred in severel erea.”

CHAUNCEY BZLDLE FLAN. 15i5-1914. Contributing €Site.

Imn 150€ Chauncey Eeadle begen to decicn the landescare fecr Edwin W,
Grove's recently acquired cdevelopment property on the west side of
Cha-lotte Street. Beadle's extensive use cf tresc, o©pen spacecs.
stcne in retalirming walls were charactericstic of the naturalicstic
lancscaping and i1cgeal beckdrop for & rucstic oqothic revivel church.
St. Mary' s Church was constructed on gently sleping bank that ran
away from the rosd. Facing the rear of the church was ancither bank
that abutted Macon Street.

The Eeedle plan crovided & natural backdrop for the church and
ircluced planting netive trees of pine, dooweocd. magnolia,
rhococgsndrone and mountain laurel. To maimtain the naturalistic
setting, he inclucdec stone footpsths, @ small bricdce over the crest,
anc <licne reteirning walls on the morth and esst sides of the church.

4. THE WAYSILE SHFRINE: 1565. Nen-Centributimg Cbject

The Waysicde GShrine, originelly ==t ir place et the ccrner of
Charlotte Street and Macon Avenue in 1915, Th:s cite liec cdirectly
scuth cf t(he chHurch.

The original Crucifix with a rustic canopy was impcriec from CGermany
anc wac replaced after having been severely camaged by vancals. The
secend Crucifix was mace of wood and scen succumbed tc the weather.
Fathe~ Farnum hac the third Crucifix macde o©f terra cctta ancd was
clacec in 1920, In 195E9%, thie Crucifix was cesecrated and the
prese~t cacst bronze Crucifix sculpted Ey Dam mMillspaugh was
dedicates in 1GEE. It is lccatec at the same cite.*
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5. COLUMBARIA AT THE WAYSIDE SHRINE. 1982. Non-Contributing Site

In 1532, +the Crucifix was su-rounded by a emall contemporary
wrought-iron railing to create a small garden. Thie columbarias is
referred tc as the Memorial Garden where the ashes of parishioners
erd friernds of St. Mary's are buried.

&, REA=S COLUMBARIA. 19%90. Non-Contributing Site.

In recert years, the church has establicshed a second columbaria on
the p-operty, this being located eon the eacst =side of the property
beh:nd the church. Dedicated in 1990, this columbaria is leocated in
@ garden-lite cetting surrounded by bv seacsonal eand native
plantinge.

7. STULPTEDL ANGEL. Mid-1970s. Non-Contributirg Object

Approached by concrete steps and wall behind an iron railing, a
sculped angel has been placed symmetrically in the rear garden. It
is eset within the resr columbaria and is surrounded by hedges.

8. GARAGE. CA. 1925. Non-Contributing building

A small single-bay garage northeast of the Rectory appears
to be contemporary with the house. The gable-front building
facing Evelyn Alley features sheathing of split shake
shingles, a pier foundation of masonry units identical to
those of the Rectory, and a four-over-four double-hung sash
window centered on each side elevation. Although the
character-altering installation of a modern overhead garage
door filling the main facade renders the building non-
contributing, the garage is not a intrusive element in the
overall design of the property.
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SUMMARY ¢

Located in the historically exclusive Grove Perk neighberhood, the

19:46 St. Mar+v’'s church has significently contributed te the
neichborhcods spiritusl, architectursl eand landsrape development.
As one of the earliest structures built in  this burgeonirc
recicdential reighborhood, St. Mery ' would int-oduce the Gothic
Revival architectur-al style on an Intimate scale. For eighty yeears,
St. Marvy'e Anglo-Catholic church nhas stood acreoss the street from
Crove Fari in gulet elegance. Desigred by the rerowneg local
architect Richarc Srarp Smith, the picturesque Gotnic Revival church

reveéirs  virvtoally Intact., Even the 156G additicen onto the rez=r
(escst) elevalion has besen hsndled with gracs and craftsmanship.
e rural architectiursal style 1< mirrored 1In & well
ndecape plan initiatec atzcut 1915 by Chauncey Eezadle of
ctale a-d detail=sd by lcoccal lancscape architect Doa2n
Coizen. Tte uce cof speciecs piantirmg and netlve trees, shrubes anrnd
groun? cover prov:ide parishionere and vicsitore with a charming loob
intc eerly twentieth-century Asheville.

The crurch 1s alec eligible in the interrelated arese of relicion
and <cscociel histery for 1te @associatien with the Anglc-Catholic
moveTrent in Nec-th Carolina and Western Nerth Carolina and local
leaders <cuch as &Rev. Cherles M. Hall, Richard Sharp Emith and
Crauncy E=adle.

€t. Mary's Church represents a century-cld movement within the
Epicecopal Church. The Anglo-Catholic liturgy was introcduced into
the United Ststes in 1844 and known as the Oxford Movement.
Misunderstocd beoth  for its "hicgh" services and maintenance of the
Catholic tracitiorn, thice movement has remained a small but vidbrant
divicion of the Anglican and Episcopal Church. At St, Mary's, the

high macse/liturgy has been In constant us2 <since the church was
established in 19514,

RELICION AND SOCIAL HISTORY CONTEXT:

The Anglo-Catholic tradition in the Eniccopal Church relates to &
High Church movement emphasizing liturgical continuity with historic
Catholicism, The proponents of the Anglo-Cathclic Episcopal Church
resist the pcrular notion that the Church cof England and the
Ecicsccrpal Church in the United States are cf the protectart
traciticn.
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The ‘recurrection’ of the Anglo-Cathelic tradition began under Rev.
Jchn Keble. Rev. Keble, Oxferd Dcn, preached the annual "Acgize
Sermen™ in the University Chapel of St. Mary om July 14, 1833, From
that event, we date the beginmning of the Oxford Movement, the great
revivel of Catholic teaching end practice within the Anglican
Communior, Leeders of the Episcopal Church in the United Statecs
were early affected by the claricon call of the "Tractariancs", as the
oricinal adherents of the Oxford Movement in Encland were celled
Secauee they procleimed thelir idease 1in & seriecs cf tracte or
nampohlete, Amcng thecse was Levi Si1l1liman Ives, seccnd Fishcp cf
North Ceroline.

Zisheps lves in 1E4% wacs the firet American EBEichep to csll for- the
resurption ¢ private confecsicon, preyers for the cezd, anc
invocetior of the Saimte amcng Epicscopelianc. He wee elsc
inctrurmental 1n  the founding of the first monastic inctituticn in
the  bkrclican Communicon  since  Henry VIII at Velle Crucis, HNcrth
Cerclire irm 1E€c4., Lcong known as one of the "High Church" diccecses
of the Zpicceopzil Church, Neorth Carclina and ecpecially Wesetern Narth
Carclina wze no stranger to the influence co©f the Oxfcrd Moverent
from thte time of EBichtop lves cnward.™

AFc-cepterce cof the Anclic-Catheclic liturgy wes not, however,
widecz-eaed even zmong the Epicsceopel Church. Much of the traditicn
of the €rciszozal Church, par<cicularly the Southern Epicsccpal Church,
precates the O»ford Movement, so there were not many Anclc-Catholic
pa-lictes, S+, Mary's is thre cnly e»isting uncompromicsing
mngic-Catholic Church in Nerth Caroline.®

FRdvocates cof the Orford Movement telieved that the Frotestant
Fefeormaticn had not affected the Anglicen tradition anc thsat The
Church hsd mever lost her ccntinuity with the ancient Church. The
dilution of cermonial rites through time had brought the Church
seemingly close to the practice cf protestantism. It was thought by

the "Tractariance"” that theose Anglican and Episcepal leaders with
"protestant” leaning would socn cause the dissolution of the
Church.*=

In a 192E pamphlet written by Rev. Charles M. Hall (establishec St.
Mary ‘e, Asheville) entitled Witnescses to the Truth: A recplv to
"Chall the rrotestant Eoiscooal Church te Decstrevec™", the

cocntroversy cver the true oricins and established rites cf the
ChurcH was cetated. fccording tz Rev. Hall, "The Anclican Church
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did not spring from the womb of Continental Protestentiem. It is
part of the great Catholic Church of history, and inheritse
traditions in common with the orthodox Churches of the East and the
Church of Rome. The Church 1s determined to retain identity with
the historic comnstitution cf the Church cof the New Tecstament.:w

Ey the turn cf the century, yet ancther obstacle to the spresd of
Anglc-Cathclicism became evident. The popular notion that
Anglic-Cathclics and Roman Catholicse were of the same tradition
caus=2<d mucr consternation among th2 "Tractarian” leaders, Rev.
Hall &nd cthers comsistantly fought the perceived "surrender of our
title cf membercship 1in the Cathe:ic Church” to the Reman Cetholics
who look to the Eishop of Fcme. The Anglo-Cathclic locks: toc the

Archbicehcp cf Centerbury .+t

It was Intc thics fertile yet controvercsial Episcopal grounc that the
Rewv Charlee Mercer Hall stepped in 1912 when he came tec Acheville
for rest enc treztment cf recpiratory allmente. C(Ceoilncicente! to his
arrivel in Acsheville, he was acsked to fill iIn at Trinity Paricsh,
Asheville, which was without & rector. A convincing and charismatic
fAfnglo-Catholic, Rev. Hall converted e respectable minority of

Trinity' ¢ parichioners to the cause.=**=

St. Mary's Parish was organized in June of 1914 "for the maintenance
and defemce of Catholic principles" as the original by-laws state.
It wase founded and continues to offer services to believing anc
practicing catholics cof the Anglican ethos.*~

The controversy surrounding the Anglc-Catholic ceremonial rites anc
liturgy had nct quelled and Rev. Hall found that practicing the

"high" <cervics caucsed him to be shunned by most of his fellow
priests in the diocese. So estranmged wes this type of service that
congregation members encountered hostility and even vicious
opposition to the new congreation where strange doings were allegec
to go on. The local ministerial association psssed a rescluticn
cencemning the establishment of the new church. Vandals tore dcwn

and destroyecd the crucifix at the corner cf Charlotte and Macon.**®

So =ignificant were the problems of FAnglo-Catholic identity anc
clarity of the Anglican liturgy that Rev. Hall declared that "the
pogular religicr of the day 1s against us. The Oxfcrd Movement hac
in the pas* ccne mcre tham any other school of thoucht tc save the
Frotecstant Episccpal Church from harm thrcugh what might have provec
fatal bluncers on the part of some of he- sons."” 2%
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Rev. Hall continued to espouse Anglo-Catholicism. In a half-page
adverticement Iin The Sunday Citizen. Asheville. Oct 22, 1516, Rev.
Hell stated: "Saint Mary’'s 1s established as a parish for the Glory
of Gocd and to te the exponent of the Principles of the Oxford
Moverent or Catheolic Revival...." The article went on to enumerate

the cdifference between the preotestant and catholic churches &nd
decscribec the liturgy being practiced at Et. Mary <.

His fo-micable scholarship and recdoubtable character eventually won
him accle:m anc apoointment as ar Examining Chaplain, Rev. Hell
avthcred meny pieces defending the position of the Church including
Life cf a Christian, The Little Valleve. Cominmg Cathclicism, A
De-oTinmzczicmal Foiccopste, Auricular Confec=zion ancd Fenance.*

[¢* wzasz not until Rev. Hall s successcr 1n 1925, FRudolph H.
Schnorrenaterc, did St. Mary’'s becin the long process towerds beirng
agrcecied ow o the communl by, So cdeliterate anc effective wes hie call
toc the comauanlty that by his deperture in 1928. he began to draw the
growinc CBrove Ferk's neighborhood new and young element into the
parich

Since Schrmocrrenberg’'s departure in 192¢&, St. Mary ' 's Farish has
continuec to grow. Under the aeqis of Fr. Farnum (1928-1947), Fr.
Weobe (1%47-19%3), Fr. Veal (1953-19%7), Fr Chaplin (1956-1%83), and
Fr. Meeks (193 - present) the church has continued to attract
nelchbocrhced residents and contribute to the spritual and physical
welfare cf the community. Most 1Importantly, however, the Church has

mainteined ites Anglo-Catholic tradition.
HISTORICAL EACKEROUND:

St. Mary'e Church 1€ nestled on an irrecularly shaped lot at the
intersection of Charlotte Street and Macon Avenue. 1Its topographic
features inmclude a8 <significant ravinme and small brook that runs
along the east boundary of the lot. The lot was purchased in 1914
from Ecdwin W. Grove and would soon beccme a centerpiece cof this
upper clasz recicdential neighborhooco.

Edwin Wiley Grecve, a pharmaceutical magnate from €%. Louis, arrivec

in Askeville in 1657. His pascsion for development of upper-class,
rrcfescsicrally cesigneZ and deveioped recidential neighbcrhcods was
nct limitez te Asheville. He was an active cdevelcper in St. Louls

erc btefere all was cdcne, develcped two similar neighborhoods inf
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Atlantas.*"

Grove fircet began toc accumulete proper-ty iIn 1G08&. He purchaced
nineteen acres from the ectate of C.T7T.C Deare on the east side of
Charlctte Street near the city limites. it wee from this tract thet
St. Mzry = FParish would purchecse its precroerty. Later 1n 1908 Grove

furchasec nine lote from the Froximity park company and the

"Murdock” tract lying on the wecst side of Chzarlotte Strest.2*S

Ir the came yeer of the first purchase, Grove tilred Chauncey Eezdle
of the Ei1ltmore Ectaste to plan the cocamumity. He leid out the
streste anz lete recoecting the topegoreachic and naturalistic
setting, He plenned fo- rows cof treec, par-=. a divided strest
fCinex=t Bazrlwav), poctet parts, snd arn elahorstie entrerce park with
stone getehouses and a fountain.

The =strength of the development end the attractiveness of the cesicgn
e the PRecosvalle Citizen to speculate in December 15906:

"...the erection of a nundred dwellinge, built of stone and
moder~ and artistic 1In the highest degree,..the dwellings to
be erected will be permanent 1in nature being of <tone end
architectursily beautiful, varying irn size from a six or seven
recom house, 1t is said, to large mansions...."*<

The =ale of 1loie on the west cside of Crharlotte Street began almost
et once and by the end of 1913 almest half of the lote in the west
civision of Grove Fartl had been sold. In 1513, Grove laid out 56
sizeable lots on the east side of Charlctte Street including Sunset
Parkway. The areas wes improved over the next year and by 1914, lots
were availlable for <cale. Ey 191¢. lcts aleng Macon Avenue anc
Sunset Parkway were avallable.="

Sales were brisk through 1G2C. 0t the &9 available lots in "E.W
Grove Park Eact of Crarlotte", some 47 has been sold before 1522.
The bcom years for the neighborhood, however, occured between 1923
anc 1529 when T¢é& housecs were built.=*

It was iIn thie context of & rigorcusly-planned neighborhoeod designec
for Acgheville' s Baptist and Frotestant elite that the small,
struggling Anglo-Cathclic parish was to ¢grow.
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ST. MARY' 'S CHURCH:

Rev. Charles M. Hall, interim priest at Trinity Episcopal Church in
downtown fcheville, converted a reasonable minority of that parish
which would establish a church in the Anglo-Catholic Episcopal
trecition in Asheville. ©St. Mary's Parish was crganized in June of
1914 "for the maintenance and defense of Catholic principles", ac
the c-icinal by-laws state. The 1intention was to provide a church
home where the full richness of the Anglo-Catholic service could be
maintalined irncluding: sung eucharist, daily macs, perpetus!
recervaticn of the BElecced Sacrament, privete auricular confecssion
and <“he complete observance of the festivals and fasts of the Church
Yezr.,

Acco-Zdinc tz Church records of Letters-cf-Trancsfer (1513 and 1%14),
over 40 incividuale anc families would become charter members of St.

Mary = Farich,. City Directories (1914 and 1915) indicate that e
sigrificent fpcortion of the families recided 1in the Montforc
reizhtorheood: im iteelf, an upscele Victocrian streetcar suburbkh. CF
the I7 femiliesg’ resicences identified: 11 lived 1in Montford: B

livec In the meighborhood Jjuet nmorth of the downtown bordered by
Charlotte Strest and Merriman Avenue; ancd the balance from downtown,
eact Acs-eville, and iclolated residences in the county.
Interecstingly, not one charter member was identified as being from

Croeve Park.=7

Occupaticneally, the charter members were quite diverse. Judages,
lawysre ancd buciness managers communecd with store clerks, plumbers
and ssamsirecc2s, Df  the aroup identified throughk ths City

Directery, 4 women were widows and X were students.

The first cee-vices conducted by Rev. Hall were held in a smali
builcing or the grounds of the Manor Hotel.=® When the vestry
decicded to build a church, a committee was appointed to select the

site. Twc ladies checse a triangular lot at the corner of Charlotte
and Mace~ Avenue,. Its topography was such that it would be ideal
for church but unsuited for residential builcding. It was

recommendec tc the vestry that the ‘gulley’ be purchased from E.W.
Grove.="

Richerd Sharp Smith, a member of the vestry of the church, ccnceivec
and cesigned the church In 1514, The building constructec was but &
small part c?t the cverall plan. According to Smith's ceriginal
ccncept, "Tne Lacy Chapel of Saint Mary’'s Church"” wouldg be enlargec
by ceorstructing & sanctuary to the north when the <cize of the
ccngrecatcn necessitated 1it. The planms also included a rectory tc
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be leccated to the south of the Chepel. When Et. Mary’'s Chapel
evpanded in 1%&0, however, it entailed the enlargement of the chapel
1tsel f.=

Conetruction beganm immeciately and the corner stone was leid October
21, 1314 in & ceremany attendecd by ccme 400 people.: The first
cervicese were held 1n the new building en Christmes, 1514 with
Weestern North Carolina’' = Bishep Junius M, Hormer and the firet
rector Charles Mercer Hell officietinc.=7

The Wayecsics Shrine waee cet i1n plece at the corner In 1512 st the
time ci the completion of the church anc remeimed there2 decspite
vaencelism

Bces2 on the erperiencss of other Ancleo-Lathclic pericshes eand the
public’'s micumderstarcing of the lituray, the clergy anc esrly
parlchicnsre experienced Cistrucst and ieolsticn. Fev Hall
encountered  hmgoetllity and even vicliouse ogpcsitica to his  new
cchgregaticon where strange colings were clieded tec co on. The local
mirlsterial esscciation passed resclutions concdemning the
e2cstablichment of the new church. Vancale tore down &end destroyed

s

the crucif:» et the cornmer, end <clashec the tirec of the rector’'s
car. A geniel Frotestent Divine remerkecd that "He could stanc
sciste, but not Ape-ists”. It was intimated to ceveral young men
that acsecciation with the psrish coculd jeopardize their jobs.=®

Durirg the first decece of ite existence, St. Mary' = foucgnt for its

1dentity &and & fplace i1in  the community. The vestry attempted to
educate the public through Informative articlee in the Agheville
Citice~ newspaeper and by welcoming all thoce who would dare

aoproach,

The parich itself procrecssed with a series cf imprcvements to
further integrate itself into the community. Scon after ccmpletion
of the paraicsh church, Cauncey Beadle of Eiltmcre Estate developecd a
macster lancdecape plan for the irreqgularly shaped lot. Ceonsicstant
with hie cther cngoling work for Grove in the neichborhcocd, Beacdle
cevelope= & bucclic setting and beackdreop for this small, rural-type

church.

Ey 162%, the parish had alsc constrected a rectcry, masking Father
Hall's precsence in the neighbcocrhccd mcre cbvicus. The recicry, lite
the church iteelf, was cecsigned bty Richard Sharp Smith.
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It was nct until the mid-1920's under Rev. Rudolph H. Schnorrenberc
{19Ze-1926), did the mending procecss begin and members of the Grove
Fart neighborheood attend the services. By 1947 and the retiremert
cf Rev Arthur W, Farnum (1%926-1947), Et. Mary 's was concsidered &
neighborhood church, Rev. Fernum came to St. Mary's from within
the diccecse end waees known to be reascnable end thoucghtful., The
caniribution cof Rev. Farmum and ©&St. Mary s parlicsh to the city

during the deprescsion nct only eroded all opposition but actually
enoear-zd themsslves teo the commurity.=%

The peosit-wer yesre hes seern ceontinued gr-owth end service ot St

Mary < Under the guidance of Rewv. GCale D. Webbe (1947-1952),
prcranly the best known of St. ary's rectcre beceucss of his
ertencive writing anc travelling, the perish <=stabilized end lockec
to future sciritual ancd physical growth., FRev. Webb retired in 1974
atter years ecg Headmaster of Chriet Schecol in  Arden, Nocrth
Carcliire.~"

From 1953 to 193, the parish wes s2rved by two rectors, Rev. Eric
W. Veal and Faul Chaplin. Under their tenure, the chepel was
erpanded 1n 1560, the rectocry wes updaisd, and the church’'s Golden

Anrivecary celsbrated, ¢

Recent acditione to the site include the two columbaria, cne at the
foot of the Waveide Shrine and the other behind the church, small
iren fence reilinge thet protect these hellowed grounds and a small
number of planting beds.

Under the present rector, Rev. Edward Meebks, St. Mary's continues
in the Anglo-Catholirc traditicon, rev. Meebs 1is carrylng on the
leccal tradition of reaching cut to the Asheville community anc
all-the-while maintaining the services practiced throuchout the
Catholic centuries.

RICHARD SHARF SMITH:

Richard Sharp Smith was bcrn  in Karding, Yorkshire, England on July
7, lESZ. His earliest architectural training was in the office of @
cousin, Gecrge Smith, and later in various Manchester cffices. He
emigrated to the United Statesa in 1EEZ where he was employed by the
Reid Ercthe-c, Evansville. Incdiana. Richard Sharp Smith moved tC
New York inm 1EE3 where he Jjoimed the recently established office of
Eracgfcrc L. Gilbert. In addition to some resicdential work anc



88 Perm 18.800-0 Q) bgprel Mo fORsgEN g

United States Department of the Interlor
National Park Service

National Reglister of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section number 8 Page._‘_9_____'_~ St. Mary's Church, Buncombe Co., NC

public commissione, a large part of the work of that office waee the
decion and ceoncstruction of railrcad stations.

[m 1Etée, Smith Jeoined the office of Richerd Morrics Hunt. Smith
worked crn varicus preojects for the Hunt firm, until beirg acssigned
the Eiltmors project in 1ES0, From the bscinnninc, Smith wac
inveolves in  the constructien cf Eiltmecre Houcse, as well as other
cltese or the Ectate. In 1€9Z, CGecrge Vancderbilt commicscicned Smith

2 Young Men’'s Institute 1n Asheville. In conjunction

=
to decsicn  th
wits the Hunt firm, Smith oversew the decsign anc construction of the
Ectate office, thke railrcac end freicght <steticone, ancd F1l) Soul ' =

Church,

Fcllcowing Funt'e dezathn  in 1BSS and ths completicn of the Ectate in
18%¢, Smith 124t the Hunt firm but remained 1n Ashevilile area.
Smith'e acverticssmnt Iin the City Directcry of 1E%6-57 informed the
rester, "Tight yesers with the letse Mr. F.M. Hunt, Six vyears
SE==sz:cent Frochitect for GLW Vencerbillt, teqg, Estzte and New
Sesidence, Eiltmore, N.C.""=

Ev t¢he timz of hie cdeparture from the Eiltmore Ecstate, Smith hecd
tecome locaily and regicnally rerowned for his cspirited
interpretsticn of the Enclish Cottsce and Gothic Revival
architectural stylec. His presence over the next 30 vyears would

tecome unecstimatable. Throughout his caree-, Smith desicgned the
full complimert of public and private facilites: from hotele and
cturches tz- mejor ccmmericel etructurecs; frem emall, intimste
recidential cottages to large period-revival mansiones.

Smith's coniribution to the Grove Park neighborhood wee not limitec
tc €t. Mary's Church. Ey the time of his death, his works includec
the Oatee House and the Chiles House on Gertrude Place, three houses
on Ecdwin Flace, Grove's office loceted at the couthend cf the Grove
Park, the William Jennings Bryan House on Evelyn PFPlace, & house fo-
Reverend Thomas Lawrence on Lawrence Flace, end a houcse for North
Carclina Covernor Locke Craic on Glencale Road.=~

Emith's love effair with the English architectural tracZition was
merely an extension of his personality. He always cdressec 1in
tailer-mace suite of EBritish tweed. was never seen withocut his .
£nglish walking cap nor his canme which was used strickly es en
accesscry. 0On meore fcrmal cccassions, he wcre am English cerby.
Althcocuch Samith never returned tc his nmative VYcorkshi-2, he never
abanconed his Enclish ways. Smith was a rucged cutcocreman, he
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Rurtez bircds on horeeback on the Biltmeore Estete and bept a reir of
English setters to flush the game.=*

Richard Sharp Smith died February 14, 1924, He was buried in
Ashewv:lle' s Rivercside Cemeterv.

CHAUNCEY BEADLE:

Eeadle was bcocrn In St. Cetherines, Ontario. Cenada cor
= He studied totamy first at Ontario Acriculturs)
Collece and en he came to the United States and studied st Cornell
University. He arrived 1in Asheville in 1E20 in the employ of
Frecerict Law Olmsted s&and the O0Olmsted Brothers. He went on teo
bezome chief nUrserymen for Clmestec Ercthers and later
csuperintendent ard treasurer of the Biitmore Estate. In 1908 he
begen tc desion the landscape for Ecwin W. Grove's recently acquired
develcpment property on the west side of Charlctte Street.

Chauncey Del
ARucust D, 1

Eeascie ¢ erterzcive use of trees, open spaces, stone in retaining
wells, eand stone 1n the gate anc bench structures at the entrance to
the Greove Parbk development were characteristic of the naturalistic
landecapring. Generous setbactks and ample plantingcs further
increased the apcearance of a "sylvan park", He plarnned several
parke, one being the large park at the entrance tc Grove Fark on the
weest sice of Charlctte Street. In hie overall laycut and landscape
planning for Grove's subdivisions, he also stressed the curvilinear
road cycstems thet were an extension of the naturel topographic

features .~ "

Subeeguent to the planning of the Greve Partk  neightorhocd, Beacdle
would desigr other significart develeopments and parks iIncluding.

Suncset Farlway, opened in 1914, & park on Woodland Road, and
assicted with the planning of the Eiltmore Forest residential
neighborhoed. All Beadle's commicssions featured curvilinear

streete, large lots and naturalistic landeceping favored by the
Olmsteds.

Eeacdle liveZ on the Eiltmore Estate grounds until his death In 1950.
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Verbal Boundary Description

The nominated property comprises land that is located at PIN# 9649-11-66-4318 and
includes the church , rectory, and garage.

Boundary Justification

The nominated property Comprises all the property historically associated with
St. Mary's Church.
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PHOTOGRAPHS
Photographer: Kent R. Newell
Date: May 6, 1994
Negatives: Western Office SHPO
1. South elevation looking north showing original concrete bridge and original
church elevation.
2. North elevation looking east. Note buttresses and 1960 concrete bridge.

(03}

Nave, rood screen and altar looking east.

4. Nave and choir loft looking west.

S. West and south elevation of rectory looking north.

6. North elevation of rectory looking south.

7. Memorial Garden, columbaria and crucifix looking northeast.

West elevation facing Charlotte Street, looking NE.

Readr (east) landscape looking south. Note Ogdan patio, stone retaining walls and
garden. i
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